
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

AGENDA 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Monday, June 2, 2025 — 2:00 P.M. 
 

The VCMWD Board of Directors welcomes the public to attend its meetings both in-person 
at its Board Room and virtually via livestream. Please note that in the event of technical 
issues that disrupt the meeting livestream or receipt of public comments by phone or 
email, the meeting will continue, unless otherwise required by law, such as when a Director 
is attending the meeting virtually pursuant to certain provisions of the Brown Act. 
 

 
Instructions for members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors:   
 
Members of the public can address the Board of Directors during “Public Comments” or on specific 
agenda items, may do so as instructed below.  All comments will be subject to a limit of three (3) minutes. 
 

• Making Public Comment for In-Person Attendance: Members of the public who wish to observe or to 
address the Board may join the Board Members at the noticed, physical location. A Request to Speak 
slip must be submitted to the Board Secretary prior to start of the meeting (if possible). 

• Phone Comments During the Meeting: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for 
the item closes during the meeting, submit a telephone number by email to the Board Secretary at 
publiccomments@vcmwd.org, together with the agenda item number, and the Board Secretary will 
call when the board is ready to hear public comments; or 

• Emailed Comments: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for that item closes at the 
meeting, email your comments to the Board Secretary at publiccomments@vcmwd.org and they will 
be read aloud during the public comment period; or 

• Written Comments: Written comments can be also be physically dropped off or mailed in advance of 
the meeting at the District’s Administrative located at 29300 Valley Center Rd., Valley Center, CA 
92082, for receipt no later than 1:00 pm on meeting day. 

 

These public comment procedures supersede any District public comment policies and procedures to 
the contrary. If modifications or accommodations from individuals with disabilities are required, such 
persons should provide a request at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting by email to the Board 
Secretary at boardsecretary@vcmwd.org. 
 

Meeting Broadcast: Members of the public may watch the meeting electronically by visiting the 
District’s website at vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents and then clicking the 
link listed below “live stream” on the page.   

Meeting Documents: Board Meeting Packets (except for closed session materials) will be made 
available to the public once distributed to the Board. Please visit the District’s 
website at vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents for Agenda and related Board 
Meeting Documents.  

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

At its option, the Board may approve the agenda, delete an item, reorder items and add an item to the 
agenda (Government Code Section 54954.2). 

mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:boardsecretary@vcmwd.org
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents


Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  2     June 2, 2025 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Comments and inquiries from the audience will be received on any matter not on the agenda, but within 
the jurisdiction of the Board. Comments and inquiries pertaining to an item on the agenda will be received 
during the deliberation of the agenda item (Government Code Section 54954.3). 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is 
requested by a Board member, staff or member of the audience. 

 
1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, May 19, 2025;  

2. Audit Demands; 

3. Request Approval of Resolution No. 2025-13 to Set the District’s FY 2025-26 Appropriation 
Limit for Proceeds from Taxes per Article XIIIB of the State Constitution; and 

4. Request Approval of Resolution No. 2025-14 to Adopt the FY 2025-26 Annual Water 
Supply and Demand Assessment. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEM(S) 
 
It is not necessary to notify the Board Secretary if a member of the public wishes to speak on items listed 
on the agenda as public hearings. Public hearings will begin at the time stated in the notice, or as soon 
thereafter as the matter can be heard. Opportunities for the public to address the Board will be given after 
the President opens the hearing. 

 
5. Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Proposed Water Availability Charges for Fiscal Year 

(FY) 2025-26 and Request Adoption of Ordinance No. 2025-05 to Amend the District’s 
Administrative Code: 

 

A public hearing will be held to receive input on the District’s proposed revisions to water 
availability charges for fiscal year 2025-26. Upon conclusion of the public comments and 
discussion, adoption of said charge will be considered. 
 

a. Open Public Hearing 

b. Report by Director of Finance and Administration 

c. Audience comments/questions 

d. Close Public Hearing 

e. Questions/Discussion 

f. If desired, motion to approve or deny Ordinance No. 2025-05 

 
 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  3     June 2, 2025 

ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

6. Review of Proposed Revisions to the Meter Capacity Charges and Request to Set 
Public Hearing Date to Consider Approval of New Charges: 
 

A review of proposed revisions to the Meter Capacity Charges (along with related administrative 
code amendments), and a request to set public hearing date to consider approval of new charges. 
 

a.  Report by District Engineer 
b.  Discussion 
c.  Audience comments/questions 
d.  If desired, authorize staff to set public hearing date  

 

7. Preview of the FY 2025-26 Annual Assessments for the Woods Valley Ranch Sewer 
Service Area and Request to Set Public Hearing Date to Put the Service Charge and 
Grinder Pump Maintenance Charge Assessments on the Property Tax Roll: 
 

A preview of the proposed Woods Valley Ranch Service Areas Sewer Service Charge and Grinder 
Pump Maintenance Charge, Sewer Standby Fee, annual assessments for Assessment District No. 
2012-1 (AD 2012-1), and annual special taxes for Community Facility District No. 2020-1 (CFD 
2020-1) to be levied on the property tax roll for FY 2025-26 and request to set a public hearing 
date to consider collecting the Sewer Service Charge and Grinder Pump Maintenance Charge on 
the property tax roll. 
 

a. Report by District Engineer 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, authorize staff to set a public hearing 

 

8. Request to Approve Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with 
Enterprise Automation for the HMI Migration Project: 
 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2025-15, approving Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with Enterprise Automation for the HMI Migration Project [Account No. 01-06-78-
51730] will be requested. 

 

a. Report by District Engineer 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2025-15 

 
INFORMATION / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM(S) 

 

9. San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board Meeting Summary: 
 

A report on the SDCWA’s Board of Directors’ Meeting of May 22, 2025 will be provided. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  4     June 2, 2025 

10. General Information: 
 

General Information items will be reviewed. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AB1234 REPORTING* 
 

* Directors must provide brief reports on meetings/events attended in the performance of their official duties 
for which compensation or reimbursement is provided.   Authority: Government Code Section 53232.3. 

 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
 

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider litigation, 
personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client privilege. 
Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed session (per 
Government Code § 54956.9). 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 

 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

This agenda was posted at least 72 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to the 
public. No action may be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except as provided 
by Government Code Section 54954.2. Any written materials provided to a majority of the Board of 
Directors within 72 hours prior to the meeting regarding any item on this agenda will be available for 
public inspection on the District’s website. The agenda is available for public review on the District’s 
website, http://www.vcmwd.org.  
 

For questions or request for information related to this agenda contact Kirsten Peraino, Board 
Secretary, at (760) 735-4517 or publiccomments@vcmwd.org. Upon request, this agenda will be 
made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 
202 of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability who requires a 
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the 
Board Secretary at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible. 
 

 

— End of Agenda — 

http://www.vcmwd.org/
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org


 

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Monday, May 19, 2025 — 2:00 P.M. 

  
The Valley Center Municipal Water District Board of Directors’ meeting was called to order 
by President Ferro at 2:00 PM. In the Board Room at 29300 Valley Center Rd.; Valley Center, 
CA 92082, and livestreamed on the District’s website at www.vcmwd.org.  

 
ROLL CALL 
 

Board Members Present: Directors Ferro, Smith, Ness, and Stehly. 
 

Board Members Absent: Noting the absence of Director Holtz. 
 

Staff Members Present: General Manager Arant, District Engineer Grabbe, Director of Finance and 
Administration Pugh, Director of IT Pilve, Director of Operations and Facilities Lovelady, Special 
Projects & Regulatory Compliance Manager Nichols, Manager of Accounting/Deputy Director of 
Finance & Administration Velasquez; Executive Assistant/Board Secretary Peraino, and General 
Counsel de Sousa present in-person. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
 

President Ferro established for the record the process by which public comments are received by 
the Board; this process was also described in the Agenda for the meeting. 

 
SPECIAL ACTION REQUIRED 
 

1. Reconsider the Action the Board Took at its January 17, 2023 Board Meeting 
Regarding Virtual Participation Under the “Relaxed” Teleconferencing Requirements. 
 

General Manager Arant provided an overview of how Board Meetings have been held since the 
onset of the COVID-19 pandemic (i.e. in-person, teleconference, and hybrid formats) and their 
different compliance requirements with the Brown Act.  The Board last discussed its virtual/ 
teleconference attendance during its regular meeting on January 17, 2023.  At that time, staff 
provided an overview of the legal methods available under the Brown Act for remote participation, 
including the provisions outlined in AB 2449. The discussion focused on the applicability of these 
options to the District and the feasibility of implementing a hybrid meeting model.  Following 
discussion, the Board reached a consensus that the District would continue to operate as an in-
person Board. 
 

Before the COVID-19 pandemic, the Brown Act permitted teleconferencing for meetings with 
specific requirements:  
 

• Identification of each legislative body member's teleconference location; 

• Each teleconference location must be accessible to the public; 

• Members of the public must be allowed to address the legislative body at each teleconference 
location; 

• The meeting agenda must be posted at each teleconference location; and 

• At least a quorum of the legislative body must participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the agency’s jurisdiction. 

 

http://www.vcmwd.org/


Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

2   May 19, 2025 

Initially, these rules were relaxed, first through the Governor’s executive order and then by 
legislation (via AB 361), allowing members of a legislative body to attend meetings virtually, 
without complying with the standard teleconference rules. With the conclusion of the pandemic 
and the termination of the COVID-19 State of Emergency, AB 361 is no longer applicable.  
Consequently, AB 2449 was adopted, amending the teleconferencing provisions of the Brown 
Act. This amendment provides public agency legislative bodies with an additional, albeit limited, 
teleconferencing option starting January 1, 2023. 
 

Unlike teleconferencing under AB 361, AB 2449 requires that at least a quorum of the legislative 
body must participate in person from a single, clearly designated physical location. This location 
should be specified in the agenda, accessible to the public, and located within the jurisdictional 
boundaries of the agency.  Under the new teleconference rules, a legislative body may hold a 
“hybrid” (part teleconference, part in-person) meeting without having to comply with certain 
procedural requirements (i.e. post agendas at teleconference locations, identify teleconference 
locations in the agenda, make all teleconference locations open to the public) in the following 
limited circumstances: 
 

• One or more members of the legislative body (but less than a quorum) have “just cause” for 
not attending the meeting in person (childcare or family caregiving need, contagious illness, 
physical or mental disability need, or travel while on official public business); or 
 

• One or more members of the legislative body (but less than a quorum) experience an emergency 
circumstance (a physical or family medical emergency preventing in-person attendance). 
 

If a member has a qualifying “emergency” or “just cause” circumstance, to participate remotely, 
the member must also do both of the following:  The member must publicly disclose at the 
meeting before any action is taken, whether any other individuals 18 years of age or older are 
present in the room at the remote location with the member, and the general nature of the 
member’s relationship with any such individuals; and the member must participate through both 
audio and visual technology. 
 

Should the Board decide to permit virtual/remote attendance for individual Board Members, 
pursuant to AB 2449, and reconsider the decision made at the January 17, 2023 Board Meeting, 
an additional action is required.  This involves a Director formally requesting to attend virtually. 
 
Action: Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Stehly; and carried with four (4) affirmative votes, 

motion to allow virtual participation under the “relaxed” teleconferencing requirements, 
was approved. 

 
SPECIAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
2. Announcement of the 34th Annual Water Awareness Poster Contest Winners and 

Virtual Award Presentation for First, Second, and Third Places. 
 
 

This year marked the 34th Annual Water Awareness Fourth-Grade Poster Contest. The Water 
Awareness Poster Contest's theme this year was "Love Water, Save Water." VCMWD received 72 
entries from Valley Center and Lilac Elementary Schools. Winners were virtually welcomed along 
with their principals. The top winners are as follows: 

 
 

1st Place:    Lilac Elementary School – Cassandra Lefevre  
2nd Place:   Valley Center Elementary School – Arden Calderon 
3rd Place:   Lilac Elementary School – Kaimani Morgan   



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

3   May 19, 2025 

The 2026 North County Water Agencies calendar will be released in by mid-November, and will 
be available in the lobby and features the artwork of the top 1st and 2nd place winners. 

 

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is 
requested by a Board member, staff or member of the audience. 
 

3. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, May 5, 2025; and 

4. Audit Demands for Check Nos. 171554 – 171638 from April 26, 2025 – May 9, 2025, and 
Wire Disbursements for the Month Ending April 30, 2025. 
 

Action: Upon motion by Ness, seconded by Smith; and carried with four (4) affirmative votes, the 
previously listed consent calendar items were approved. 

 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEM(S) 
 

5. Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Ordinance No. 2025-03 to Approve Proposed 
Revisions to Miscellaneous Water Fees and Charges for FY 2025-26 and Amending the 
District’s Administrative Code: 

 

Ordinance No. 2025 03, approving the proposed revisions to the Miscellaneous Water Meter 
Fees and Charges (Meter Fees and Charges) and related changes to Administrative Code Article 
160. Special Projects & Regulatory Compliance Manager, Alisa Nichols, stated that staff 
advertised the Public Hearing ten days in advance through appropriate publications, with notice 
posted on May 1 and 8, 2025. It was announced that no public comments were received. 
 

Ms. Nichols continued by describing the basis behind the proposed increases. Meter Fees and 
Charges are evaluated annually by assessing the actual costs of materials and labor, and 
equipment rates incurred during the current fiscal year (FY 2024-25). This analysis aims to 
provide recommendations for the Meter Fees and Charges for the upcoming fiscal year (FY 2025-
26). The Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (San Diego – Carlsbad) (“CPI”) was 
utilized to include an appropriate increase in costs expected during the new fiscal year.  The CPI 
for the period from January 2024 to January 2025 was published at 3.1%. On average, the 
proposed recommendations for the updated Meter Fees and Charges increased 1.6% from the 
prior year, which is less than the 3.1% CPI.  The Meter Fees and Charges shown in the District’s 
Administrative Code are recommended to be increased to match the actual materials and labor 
costs and equipment rates of the following various items: 

 

• Material Costs are based on the average cost of the District’s material inventory as of January 
2025 and adjusted for the 3.1% CPI factor experienced over the previous year.  The average 
materials costs are adjusted only when new components are purchased and added to 
inventory. A 3.1% increase was applied to reflect the projected rise in average materials costs 
over the next year, estimating the District’s materials inventory value as of January 2026 – the 
midpoint of FY 2025-26.  

• Labor Costs are based on the current “Top of Range” labor rates plus Cost of Living 
Adjustment (“COLA”) to be implemented for FY 2025-26. It is estimated that the District’s 
COLA will be set at 3.1%, effective July 1, 2025. 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

4   May 19, 2025 

• Equipment Rates are based on standard cost values published by Caltrans effective 
April 1, 2025, and adjusted by the 3.1% CPI factor experienced over the previous year.  

 

After reviewing materials and labor costs, and equipment rates, staff recommended no increase 
to some categories of Meter Fees and Charges due to insignificant cost increases.  Though the 
average proposed increase is 1.6%, with the majority between 0% and 6%, some categories 
have proposed increases up to 12%. For example, the materials costs for some double check 
valves and pressure reducing valves increased significantly, resulting in proposed increases up 
to 12% over the existing Meter Fees and Charges.  
 

The following sections (§) of the Administrative Code will be amended to reflect the approved 
increases to fees and charges: 

 

• Section 160.4(a) Connection of Service – updated the fees and charges;  

• Section 160.12(d) Backflow Prevention Devices - updated the fees and charges; and 

• Section 160.20(c) Pressure Reducing Valves – updated the fees and charges. 
 

Following discussion, the public hearing was closed at 2:25 PM.  Staff recommended the 
adoption of Ordinance No. 2025-03, amending the Administrative Code to increase the various 
miscellaneous water meter fees and charges to be effective July 1, 2025. 
 
Action: Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Stehly; and carried with four (4) affirmative votes, 

the following Ordinance was approved: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-03 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AMENDING THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 

TO PROVIDE FOR MODIFICATIONS OF MISCELLANEOUS WATER METER 
FEES AND CHARGES, AND RELATED ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTIONS 

 

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 
 

  AYES: Directors Ferro, Smith, Ness, and Stehly 
  NOES: None 

 ABSENT: Director Holtz 

 
ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

6. Review of Proposed Revisions to the Meter Capacity Charges and Request to Set 
Public Hearing Date to Consider Approval of New Charges:  ITEM PULLED 

 

Action: Agenda item pulled, will be brought back at the June 2, 2025 Regular Board Meeting. 

 
 

7. Review of Proposed Changes to the General Manager Salary Range and Request 
Adoption of Ordinance No. 2025-04 to Amend the District’s Administrative Code: 

 

General Counsel de Sousa provided the Board with the opportunity to amend Article 8, Section 
8.9 (c), Compensation and Compensation Plan, adopting a salary range for the General Manager 
position.    To adhere to CalPERS regulations,  a publicly approved salary schedule must be 
adopted for each public employee position, including the General Manager. In anticipation of the 
upcoming recruitment, the District needed to set a salary range. As proposed, the amendment to 
the Administrative Code, Article 8, Section 8.9 (c), lists the salary for the General Manager as 
$265,0000 to $295,000. This action will have no impact on the compensation for the current 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

5   May 19, 2025 

General Manager, as the current compensation is set by the employment agreement with the 
General Manager, and the current salary is within the proposed salary range. 
 

Action: Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ness; and carried with four (4) affirmative votes, the 
following Ordinance was approved: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-04 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AMENDING THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE TO 

PROVIDE FOR CHANGES IN THE COMPENSATION POLICY – 
POSITION CLASSIFICATIONS AND SALARY RANGES 

 

Was adopted by the following vote, to wit: 
 

  AYES: Directors Ferro, Smith, Ness, and Stehly 
  NOES: None 

 ABSENT: Director Holtz 

 
INFORMATION ITEM / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

8. Review of Water Rate Sensitivity to Variations of Water Sales for the FY 2025-26 Budget: 
 

Manager of Accounting Velasquez reminded the Board during its regular meeting of May 5, 2025, 
staff provided an overview of the budget assumptions and expense projections assumed in the 
preliminary operations, maintenance, and capital budget for FY 2025-26.  At the conclusion of 
the presentation on May 5th, the Board requested further information concerning how water rate 
sensitivity is affected by fluctuations in water sales. 
 

The wholesale fixed costs from the San Diego County Water Authority (“SDCWA”) are included 
as a cost component in the Imported Water Costs totaling an estimated $5,801,200 in the 
preliminary Budget for FY 2025-26. The District calculates the per-acre-foot equivalent of the 
wholesale fixed charges that the District must pay to SDCWA by dividing the total charges by 
projected sales, less a 10% reserve for sales levels under-budgeted amounts.  For example, if 
the District calculated its projected sales at 12,500 Acre Feet (“AF:), wholesale fixed charges 
would be allocated over 11,250 AF. If the District projected sales at 13,500, wholesale fixed 
charges would be allocated over 12,150 AF. 
 

For the current 2024-25 FY, it is projected that the District will sell 13,800 acre feet of water.  This 
is 6.2% over the budgeted 13,000 acre feet. The increase in water sales compared to budget is 
due to drier weather conditions in the first half of the year.  As a result, agricultural sales were 
higher than expected. For FY 2025-26, staff proposed reducing the estimated sales to 12,500 
acre feet to more accurately reflect the overall decline in agricultural sales. 
 

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 
 

 

9. Review of Proposed Fixed Charges for the FY 2025-26 Budget ‒ SDCWA Fixed 
Transportation Charge and Water Capital Improvement Charge: 

 

General Manager Arant provided the Board with an opportunity for continued consideration of 
implementing an SDCWA Fixed Transportation Charge and a Water Capital Improvement Charge. 
Arant reminded the Board of the concepts from the Headwinds Workshops for potential 
implementation in FY 2025-26. For the upcoming FY 2025-26, staff recommended that the Board 
consider the implementation of two other concepts that were discussed during the “Headwinds” 
process: an additional fixed charge and a water capital improvement charge. 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

6   May 19, 2025 

• SDCWA Fixed Transportation Charge – The proposed charge shifts the SDCWA Fixed 
Transportation Charge from a variable, unpredictable, commodity-based revenue stream to 
a more stable source. More importantly, this change aims to reduce the risk of under-
collection of fixed charges from the SDCWA, an issue faced in FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24. 
Recently, this issue was partially resolved by incorporating the MWD Readiness to Serve 
Charge and Capacity Reservation Charges as fixed charges on the monthly water bill. 
Several implementation options were proposed, which include gradually introducing the fee 
in incremental amounts over a span of one, two, or three years. 
 

• Water Capital Improvement Charge ‒ Another concept previously reviewed, was the 
possible implementation of a District Water Capital Improvement Charge, similar to the Moosa 
Wastewater Capital Charge implemented two years ago.  As with the proposal for an SDCWA 
Transportation Fixed Charge, the Water Capital Improvement Charge could be phased in with 
the incremental amounts.  Revenues from such a charge could be used for “Pay Go” financing 
and / or to leverage bridge financing of SRF Loan Funding.  These direct or leveraged funds 
could be used for the major capital replacement projects slated for FY 2025-26 and FY 2026-
27, including the Old Castle Phase 2, North Broadway, and Cole Grade Phase 2.   

 

General Manager Arant summarized the overall implementation approach.  One approach would 
be to select one of the two charges, either the SDCWA Fixed Transportation Charge or the Water 
Capital Improvement Charge, for implementation in FY 2025-26. However, it was noted that each 
charge addresses a different financial need and should be evaluated in that context.   
Alternatively, the Board could consider implementing both charges, phased in over a two- or 
three-year period, versus only selecting either the SDCWA Fixed Transportation Charge or the 
Water Capital Improvement Charge. 

 
Action:   Informational item only, no action required. 

 
10. General Information:  

 

General Manager Arant provided highlights from the District’s Legislative and Regulatory Report 
for May 2025. 
 

Action:  Informational item only, no action required. 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S ITEM(S) 
 

None. 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AB1234 REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

None. 

 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
 

None 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

7   May 19, 2025 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Action:  Upon motion by Stehly, seconded by Ness; motion passed with four (4) affirmative votes, 
the regular meeting of the Board of Directors was adjourned at 3:11 PM. 

 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 

 
 

 

 
____________________________    _____________________________ 

Kirsten N. Peraino, Secretary       Enrico P. Ferro, President 



























Table 1. Annual Assessment Information

Supplier is a Wholesaler
Supplier is a Retailer

If you are both a wholesaler and retailer, will you be submitting 
two separate reports or a combined report? Number of Reports

Year Covered By This Shortage Report (Required)
Start: July 1, 2025

End: June 30, 2026
Volume Unit for Reported Supply and Demand:

(Must use the same unit throughout)
AF

Supplier's Annual Assessment Planning Cycle (Required)
Start Month: July
End Month: June

Data  Interval: Annually (1 data point per year)
Water Supplier's Contact Information (Required)

Water Supplier's Name: Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Contact Name: Alisa Nichols

Contact Title: Special Projects & Regulatory Compliance Manager 
Street Address: 29300 Valley Center Road 

ZIP Code: 92082
Phone Number: (760) 735-4516
Email Address: anichols@vcmwd.org

Report Preparer's Contact Information 
(if different from above)

Preparer's Organization Name:
Preparer's Contact Name:

Phone Number: (XXX)XXX-XXXX
Email Address:

 Supplier's Water Shortage Contingency Plan

WSCP Title VCMWD Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
WSCP Adoption Date 6/28/2011

Other Annual Assessment Related Activities

Activity Timeline/ Outcomes / Links  / Notes 
Annual Assessment/  Shortage Report Title: Optional 

Annual Assessment / Shortage Report Approval Date: MM/DD/YYYY
Other Annual Assessment Related Activities: Optional 

(Add rows as needed)

Type of Supplier (Required  to check one or two)



= Auto calculated

Use Type                                       Start Year: 2025 Volumetric Unit Used2: AF

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Total by Water 
Demand Type

All Demands          14,561 14561
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,561        14561

Landscape Tertiary 150 150
0
0
0
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 150 150

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total
0
0
0
0

Table 2: Water Demands1

 Projected Water Demands - Volume3

Total by Month (Non-Potable)

1Projections are based on best available data at time of submitting the report and actual demand volumes could be different due to many factors.
2Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent. 
3When opting to provide other than  monthly volumes (bi-monthly, quarterly, or annual), please see directions on entering data for Projected Water Demand in the Table Instructions.

Notes:  The listed demands are anticipated unconstrained demands that should be expected with only permanent water use efficiency measures implemented and anticipated increased demand due to dry year conditions. Permanent water use efficiency 
measures are implemented by the District at all times, even when no shortage is anticipated.

Total by Month (Potable)

Additional 
Description 
(as needed)

Level of 
Treatment 
for Non-
Potable 
Supplies

Drop-down 
list

Drop-down list
May select each use multiple times

These are the only Use Types that will 
be recognized by the WUEdata online 

submittal tool
(Add additional rows as needed)

Demands Served by Potable Supplies

Demands Served by Non-Potable Supplies

Three years ago total demand
Four years ago total demand

Optional (for comparison purposes)
Last year's total demand

Two years ago total demand



= From prior tables
= Auto calculated

Water Supply Start Year: 2025 Volumetric Unit Used2: AF

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Total by 
Water 

Supply Type

Purchased/Imported  Water          14,561         14,561 
                  -   
                  -   
                  -   
                  -   
                  -   
                  -   
                  -   
                  -   
                  -   

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,561        14,561       0

Recycled Water 150 150
0
0
0
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 150 150 0

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total

0

Table 3:  Water Supplies1

Projected Water Supplies - Volume3
Water 
Quality

Drop-down 
List

Total Right 
or Safe 
Yield* 

(optional) 

Additional 
Detail on 

Water Supply

Drop-down List
May use each category multiple 
times.These are the only water 
supply categories that will be 

recognized by the WUEdata online 
submittal tool 

(Add additional rows as needed)

Potable Supplies

Non-Potable Supplies

eAR Reported Total Water Supplies
Optional (for comparison purposes)

1Projections are based on best available data at time of submitting the report and actual supply volumes could be different due to many factors.
2Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent. 
3When opting to provide other than  monthly volumes (bi-monthly, quarterly, or annual), please see directions on entering data for Projected Water Supplies in the Table Instructions.

Notes:  Our wholesale water supplier, the San Diego County Water Authority, has access to additional supplies through its Carryover Storage Program, which includes in-region surface storage of approximately 40,000 acre-feet at San Vicente Reservoir. The 
Water Authority’s policy is to limit use of that water to one-fifth of the total per year, if needed. The Water Authority also has access to additional supplies from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California via its preferential right to purchase 
water. Under a dry-year scenario, that volume of water is assumed to be at least 300,000 acre-feet per year.

Total by Month (Potable)

Total by Month (Non-Potable)



= Auto calculated

= For manual input

Table 4(P): Potable Water Shortage Assessment1
Start Year: 2025 Volumetric Unit Used2: AF

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun3 Total
Anticipated Unconstrained Demand 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 14,561             14,561             

Anticipated Total Water Supply 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 14,561             14,561             
Surplus/Shortage w/o WSCP Action 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

% Surplus/Shortage w/o WSCP Action            0% 0%
State Standard Shortage Level 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Benefit from WSCP:  Supply Augmentation 0.0
Benefit from WSCP:  Demand Reduction 0.0

Revised Surplus/Shortage with WSCP 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Revised Surplus/Shortage with WSCP            0% 0%

= Auto calculated

= For manual input

Table 4(NP): Non-Potable Water Shortage Assessment1
Start Year: 2025 Volumetric Unit Used2: AF

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun3 Total
Anticipated Unconstrained Demand: Non-Potable 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 150 150

Anticipated Total Water Supply: Non-Potable 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 150 150
Surplus/Shortage w/o WSCP Action: Non-Potable 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

% Surplus/Shortage w/o WSCP Action: Non-Potable            0% 0%

Benefit from WSCP:  Supply Augmentation 0.0
Benefit from WSCP:  Demand Reduction 0.0

Revised Surplus/Shortage with WSCP 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Revised Surplus/Shortage with WSCP            0% 0%

1Assessments are based on best available data at time of submitting the report and actual volumes could be different due to many factors.
2Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent.
3When optional monthly volumes aren't provided, verify Tables 2 and 3 use the same columns for data entry and are reflected properly in Table 4 and make sure to use those same columns to enter the benefits from Planned WSCP Actions. Please see directions on the shortage 
balancing exercise in the Table Instructions. If a shortage is projected, the supplier is highly recommended to perform a monthly analysis to more accurately identify the time of shortage.
4If you enter any WSCP Benefits, then you must enter the corresponding planned Actions into Table 5.

= From prior tables

Planned WSCP Actions4

1Assessments are based on best available data at time of submitting the report and actual volumes could be different due to many factors.
2Units of measure (AF, CCF, MG) must remain consistent.
3When optional monthly volumes aren't provided, verify Tables 2 and 3 use the same columns for data entry and are reflected properly in Table 4 and make sure to use those same columns to enter the benefits from Planned WSCP Actions. Please see directions on the shortage 
balancing exercise in the Table Instructions. If a shortage is projected, the supplier is highly recommended to perform a monthly analysis to more accurately identify the time of shortage.
4If you enter any WSCP Benefits, then you must enter the corresponding planned Actions into Table 5.

= From prior tables

Planned WSCP Actions4



July 1, 2025 to    June 30, 2026

Enter Amount

(Drop-down 
List)

Select % or 
Volume Unit

Start Month End Month

0 (No Shortage) No Actions July June

NOTES:
Notes Section to be used only 

for clarifying details, and not 
for listing specific actions. 

Actions must be entred into 
table rows above.

1If you plan Supply Augmentation Actions then you must enter WSCP Benefits from Supply Augmentation Actions into Table 4. If you plan Demand Reduction Actions then 
you must enter WSCP Benefits from Demand Reduction Actions into Table 4. 
2If an Action is planned to be implemented in multiple non-contiguous periods of the year, please make separate entries on multiple rows for the same action spanning the 
different implementation periods.

Table 5: Planned Water Shortage Response Actions

Add additional rows as needed

How much is action going to 
reduce the shortage gap? 

(Optional)

When is shortage response action 
anticipated to be implemented2?

Is action  
already being 
implemented?

(Y/N)

 ACTIONS1: Demand Reduction, Supply 
Augmentation,  and Other Actions.

(Drop-down List)
These are the only categories that will be 

accepted by the WUEdata online submittal 
tool. Select those that apply.

Anticipated Shortage
Level

Drop-down List of
State Standard Levels (1 - 

6) and Level 0 (No 
Shortage)

VCMWD offers a customer portal, both in English and Spanish, providing customers access to hourly water use data, the capability 
to set up customizable leak alert notifications and receive water conservation rebate information via the customer portal.  Also, 
VCMWD adopted permanent water use efficiency measures that prohibit wasteful water use, which are in effect at all times 
irrespective of the availability of water supplies or hydrologic conditions. All persons using District supplied water shall comply 
with the following practices:
1.    Not hosing off sidewalks, driveways, and other hardscapes; except when it is necessary to alleviate safety or sanitation 
hazards.
2.    Not watering lawns in a manner that causes runoff, or watering within 48 hours after measurable precipitation. 
3.    Not using non-recirculated water to operate ornamental fountains or other decorative water feature. 
4.    Not washing vehicles with hoses not equipped with a shut-off nozzle. Avoid washing during hot conditions when additional 
water is required due to evaporation.
5.    Not irrigating ornamental turf on public street medians.





































































 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF FORMAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 
MAY 22, 2025 

 
    
1.
  

Monthly Treasurer’s Report on Investments and Cash Flow. 
The Board noted and filed the monthly Treasurer’s Report. 
 

  

2. Resolution setting a Public Hearing date and time for proposed CY 2026 Rates and Charges. 
The Board adopted Resolution No. 2025-13, setting the time and place for a public hearing on 
June 26, 2025, at or after 9:00 a.m., or as soon thereafter as may practicably be heard, during the 
Administrative and Finance Committee meeting, to receive comments regarding the recommended 
rates and charges. 
 

  

3.
  

Butterfly and plug valve procurement for the Ramona Pipeline Buried Valves Replacement 
project. 
The Board awarded a contract to Cascade Consultants LLC in the amount of $818,276 to  purchase 
23 butterfly valves for the Ramona Pipeline Buried Valves  Replacement project.; and awarded a 
contract to Cascade Consultants LLC in the amount of $157,019 to purchase 11 plug valves for the 
Ramona Pipeline Buried Valves Replacement project. 
 

  

4. The Board approved the minutes of the Formal Board of Directors’ meeting of April 24, 2025 and 
the Special Administrative and Finance Committee minutes of April 29 and 30, 2025. 
 

  

5. The Board adopted Resolution No. 2025-12, a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San 
Diego County Water Authority, honoring Fern Steiner upon her retirement from the Board of 
Directors. 

  

 
 

 
 

  

     
 
 
 
 
 

        
 

  

    
   
 



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  1 Monthly Status Report 

June 2, 2025 
 
 

TO:  Honorable President & Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Gary T. Arant, General Manager 
 

SUBJECT: DISTRICT MONTHLY STATUS REPORT – MARCH 2025 
  
 
PURPOSE: 
 

To provide the Board with a status report on District operations, activities and projects. 
 
 

SUMMARY: 
 

For the month ending March 31, 2025, the following reports are presented by the Operations, 
Engineering, Finance, Information Technology (I.T.), and General Administration Departments: 

 
I. OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT:   
 

A. WATER / WASTEWATER DIVISION:    FY FY 
     MAR  MAR 2024-25 2023-24 

Water Operations     2025  2024  to Date  to Date 
  

  Flow (average cfs) 7.35 6.02 20.64 16.76 
  Total Rainfall (inches) 3.61 4.98 7.5 19.65 

  Average 24 Hr. Temp. (F) 54 53 63 62 

  Average High Temp. (F) 65 63 77 74    
 
 
   
  Water Purchases (A.F.) 451.67   370.45 9,743.15 9,166.70 
 

 
  

  Budgeted Projected Actual 
  2024-25    2024-25 2023-24 

  Water Sales (A.F.)  13,000.0 13,800.0 11,493.3 
 

 
     F.Y. 

  FEB JAN 2024-25 
  Power Purchases   2025  2025   to Date 

Electricity and Natural Gas 
 

Total kWh Purchased  194,002 449,441 4,530,218 

Avg. Cost/kWh  $0.311303 $0.226890 $0.236809 

Total Therms Purchased  20,620 40,455 381,834 

Avg. Cost/Therm  $1.35287 $1.21452 $1.05687 

 



!P

!P

^

^

^

^ ^

^

^

^

^

WOODS VALLEY RD

MTN
M E ADOW

R D

W LILAC RD

MIRAR DE VALLE RD

MESA VERDE DR

FRUITVALE RD

JESMOND DENE RD

COOL VALLEY RD

GUEJITO
RD

MI
LL

ER
 R

D

BETSWORTH RD

CIRCLE R DR

PARADISE MOUNTAIN RD

N
LA

KE
W

OH
LF

O R
D

RD

PA
UM

A H
EI

GH
TS

 R
D

LAKE WOHLFORD RD

COUSER CANYON RD

MC NALLY RD

N B
RO

AD
WA

Y

OLD CASTLE RD

W LILAC RD

CO
LE

 G
RA

DE
 R

D

LILA C
R D

VALLEY CENTER RD
Betsworth PS

Miller PS (B)

4

5
2

3

1

Portions of this DERIVED PRODUCT Contain geographic information Copyrighted by SanGIS. All Rights Reserved. 9/6/2024 - Y:\GISProjects\Field_Maintenance\RenewableEnergy.mxd

/
RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS
Operations and Facilities Department

Solar Sites Online
^ (9) Sites - Total 1.86MW
Proposed Future Solar Sites
!P Betsworth PS - Future
!P Miller PS (B) - Future 

Terms:
kW - Kilowatt or 1,000 Watts
MW - Megawatt or 1,000 Kilowatts
1 MW will power 1,000 Homes

868kW
431kW

Total: 1.3MW

Cobb Res - 30kW

Cool Valley Res - 91kW

Country Club Res - 58kW

MJM Pump Station - 30kW

Lake Turner - 1.1MW

Miller Pump Sta. (A) - 70kW

!
!!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

Tyler Pump Station - 52kW

Moosa WRF - 278kW

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

Corporate Facility - 152.5kW



Project Start Date

kWh 

Produced  

FEB 2025

Savings 

from Solar 

FEB 2025

CSI Rebate 

FEB 2025

kWh 

Produced 

Fiscal Year

Savings 

from Solar 

Fiscal 

Year

CSI Rebate 

Fiscal Year

kWh 

Produced To 

Date

Savings from 

Solar                      

To Date

CSI Rebate    

To Date

Lake Turner 1/1/2009 126,703
Not 

Available
872,431

Not 

Available
24,208,113 $443,357

Tyler Pump Station 6/3/2013 5,733 $1,261 53,572 $11,823 1,025,651 $209,403 $61,739

Circle R Pump Station 11/13/2013 5,869 $1,291 55,462 $12,241 1,036,129 $213,054 $68,201

Cobb Reservoir 4/1/2015 3,831 $843 35,728 $7,882 544,256 $113,525 $37,481

MJM Pump Station 6/1/2015 2,975 $655 28,874 $6,362 450,046 $94,487 $32,525

Cool Valley Pump Station 3/23/2016 10,377 $2,283 97,302 $21,461 1,357,055 $291,479

Miller Pump Station 7/1/2016 7,375 $1,623 68,288 $15,075 961,582 $205,955

Lower Moosa Canyon 8/7/2023 29,403 $235 281,774 $3,934 807,651 $25,087

Corporate Facility 7/12/2024 14,747 $621 126,017 $14,322 126,017 $14,322

TOTALS 207,013 $8,812 $0 1,619,448 $93,101 $0 30,516,500 $1,610,669 $199,946

SDG&E CO2e Factor: 

24,581 Value: 49,207$   

No credits sold in February 2025 + 0 + -$             

24,581 49,207$   

Total Renewable Energy Credits ("REC") Sold:

RENEWABLE ENERGY PROGRAM

Total Program Cost Savings: $1,810,615

Total Metric Tons of CO2e Offset by Renewable Energy Production: 9,826

0.322



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  2 Monthly Status Report 

Wastewater  MAR MAR MAR 
Daily Flows (Average M.G.D.)   2025  2024  2023     

Moosa  .266 .320 .262 
Woods Valley  .128 .132 .108 

 
 

   F.Y. F.Y. 
 MAR MAR         2024-25 2023-24 

 Recycled Water  2025  2024  to Date  to Date      

   Woods Valley Ranch WWRF (A.F.)  11.04 11.76 93.29 90.63 

 
 B. CUSTOMER CONTACTS:   F.Y. F.Y. 

 MAR MAR         2024-25 2023-24 
Customer Service Requests:  2025  2024   to Date  to Date 

Backflow Leaking 5 3 48 111 

Conservation 0 0 0 0 

Facilities Damaged by Others 0 0 2 1 

Leaks 14 21 216 245 

Miscellaneous 25 19 180 177 

No Water 4 4 47 40 

Pressure 7 6 75 76 

Sewer 0 0 4 2 

STEP System 3 5 24 27 

   Water Quality 0 0 6 10 
 

After-Hour Call-Outs 

SCADA 6 1 39 29 

Customer 12 4 204 68 

 
 C. SAFETY MEETINGS: 

 

 

Safety Meetings 
   

  03/04/25  Machine Guarding & Operating Safety (Bill Morris) 
 

  03/11/25  First-Aid Kits  (Bill Morris) 
 

  03/14/25  Qualified Rigger & Signalman/Hoist & Slings (Bill Morris) 
 

Seminars/Meetings 
 

  03/12-13/25  CVU 101 hosted by Cla Val Company attended by Ron Darland 

 
 



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  3 Monthly Status Report 

 D. SECURITY:           F.Y.              F.Y. 
      MAR MAR 2024-25 2023-24     

  2025  2024  to Date     to Date  
Trespassing/Break-ins 0 0 5 1 
Vandalism 0 0 0 0 
Threats/Suspicious Activity 0 0 0 0 
Theft  0 0 0 1 

 
E. METER SERVICES DIVISION:    F.Y. F.Y. 

  MAR 2024-25 2023-24 
Installation/Maintenance/Repair   2025    to Date  to Date 

Meters Installed  4 53  134 
Meter Service Repairs  12 50 82 
Total Meters Exchanged  8 113 125 

 

Meter Flow Test Bench 
Meters Tested  8 95 121 
 

Backflow Program 
RP & DC Devices    

Tested  840 5,044 4,852 
Repaired  49 272 253 
Installed  22 123 250 

  
F. WATER FACILITIES DIVISION:      F.Y. F.Y.   

  MAR 2024-25 2023-24 
Pump Maintenance   2025    to Date  to Date 

Pumps Pulled  0 8 4 
Electric Motors Repaired  0 9 2 
Electric Motors Rewound  0 0 0 

 
G. CONSTRUCTION & MAINTENANCE DIVISION:   F.Y. F.Y.   

  MAR 2024-25 2023-24 
Pipeline Maintenance/Repair   2025  to Date  to Date 

   Mainline Repairs  0 14 15 
Shutdowns  0 4 5 
Shutdowns Due to New Construction  0 5 9 

 

Valve Maintenance  
Quad completed: A – K   
65% through Quad L 

 

  Leak Detection Program Status 
   100% of facilities detected through Quads: A – K 
   65% of facilities detected through Quad L 

     MAR F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 
Landscape (Reservoirs) Maintenance   2025  to Date  to Date 

    Station Maintenance  17 204     185 
    



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  4 Monthly Status Report 

 H. VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: 
   F.Y. F.Y. 
 MAR 2024-25 2023-24 

     2025   to Date  to Date 
 

Vehicles Serviced  6 50 43 

Miles Driven  28,239 251,387 253,002 

Gallons of Fuel Consumed - Vehicles  2,125 20,413 21,502 

Gallons of Fuel Consumed – Equipment  111 4,184 1,526 

MPG (average)  12.0 12.6 12.4 

 Pickup Trucks MPG  13.5 14.5 14.7 

 Service Trucks MPG  7.7 7.9 7.6 

Average Vehicle Miles  459 519 507 

 
Total Mileage on Vehicles   4,374,613 4,311,135 

  
  Total Number of Vehicles in Fleet  57 

   Vehicles in Service  51 

   Surplus Vehicles Available  6 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  5 Monthly Status Report 

II. ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT: 
 

A. ENGINEERING SERVICES:   
 

 

 

 

 

General Activity:   
 

In addition to the items listed in the above table, Engineering Services staff assists with 
encroachment permits and violations, provides information for mark outs and helps customers 
with water conservation questions, and available rebate programs.    

 
B. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS): 

 

The GIS team continuously adds or updates facility data in the system as changes occur, 
supporting project managers with maps, exhibits, and data analysis. 

The following took place in March:   

1. Water and wastewater infrastructure updates included adding or updating 13 
valve/appurtenances, adding 152 laterals and fitting to existing meters, 190 water meter 
location updates via GPS coordinates, adding or updating 29 backflow devices and 
adding 2 wells. There were 8 service area updates to reflect changes in the parcel layer 
from SanGIS. Edits generated from 5 as-built record drawings were completed and 7 map 
exhibits were produced. SanGIS updates were downloaded for the most recent 
addresses, parcels, right of way and roads. 
 

2. Continued to assist other departments in leveraging web applications, educating them on 
available tools and data queries while identifying opportunities to improve job efficiency. 
 



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  6 Monthly Status Report 

3. Updated the Natural Gas Engine and Generator tables, enabling users to easily identify 
which units are active and which are inactive within Cityworks. 
 

4. Improved the process of importing relevant customer information into the meters feature 
with the assistance of a consultant, allowing seamless access to meter data within both 
Cityworks and the main web application. This enhancement helps users efficiently view 
and manage meter information to better serve the District. 
 

5. Consolidated wastewater information into a web dashboard, providing an at-a-glance 
view of the system along with detailed insights.  

 
C. EASEMENT ENCROACHMENTS: 

 

Summary of Activities: 
 

In the month of March, no new Permits were requested and no new Violations were 
discovered. All other existing files are still pending. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
Encroachment VIOLATION Footnotes: 

Pending Evaluation – This column represents the status of reported encroachment 
violations.  The number of new violations reported during the month is indicated along with 
the number of violations that were resolved during the month.  Resolution may result in either 
a) the property owner agreeing to remove the encroachment violation, b) in some cases, the 
District allowing the encroachment violation to remain pending resolution by the District, c) 
issuance of an encroachment permit that allows the encroachment to remain as is, or d) 
issuance of an encroachment permit that requires modification of the encroachment by the 
owner.  Once the course of action for resolution of the encroachment violation has been 
determined, it is shown completed in the Pending Evaluation column and becomes a new 
item in either the Owner Resolution Column, the District Resolution Column, or the Active 
Permit Column.    

Owner Resolution – Removal of the encroachment violation is a property owner action 
requirement and will be inspected by District staff.  The number of encroachment violations 
that were removed during the month is indicated as completed in this column. 

District Resolution – Staff has determined that the encroachment violation is not a result of 
the current owner’s action and has agreed to allow the encroachment to remain pending 
resolution by the District. The encroachment violation is properly documented and made clear 
to the owner that the District is not responsible for damage to the encroachment as a result 
of the operation, maintenance, or failure of the District’s facility in the easement.   

 



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  7 Monthly Status Report 

Encroachment PERMIT Footnotes: 

Pending Evaluation – This column represents the status of requests to construct facilities or 
other improvements within a District easement under review and consideration.  The number 
of requests received during the month is indicated as new and the number of requests 
resolved is indicated as completed.  Resolution of the request included either a) denial of the 
encroachment request, or b) issuance of an encroachment permit. Many times, the 
encroachment permits are issued concurrently with the completion of the work.  
Encroachment permits that will require further follow up inspection are shown in the Active 
Permits column.  

Active Permits – This column shows the status of encroachment permits approved by District 
with work in progress and being inspected by District staff.  Although the work is authorized, 
work may not commence immediately. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

D. MAPPING: 
 

General Activity: In the month of March staff received 19 mapping update requests for a 
total of 46, 21 were completed. In addition, staff digitized 20 VCMWD 
easement. From a total of 3,017 easements, 1,108 have been added to 
the District’s geodatabase, 1,909 are pending. Staff also assisted with the 
Site Facilities Fire Extinguisher plans, Site Facilities Hazmat plans, 
Standard Detail Drawings, and Moosa priority project drawings. 

 

 
 
Maps and Records Updates:  Maps and records consist of preparing record drawings (as-
builts) and valve detail drawings and updating the District base map, GIS facility map, and 
database.  Maps and records are continually being updated to accurately reflect completed 
projects, non-District improvements (encroachments), and current field conditions.  The 
following table summarizes the status of the record map updates.  
 

Maps and Records Update Status Table Footnotes: 

 

1) Capital Improvement Projects – This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status 
of recently constructed Capital Improvement Projects.  Each project may generate or affect 
one or more record drawings.  Each project is counted as one regardless of the number of 
improvement sheets. 



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  8 Monthly Status Report 

2) Developer Projects – This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status of recently 
constructed Developer Improvement Projects.  Each project may generate or affect one or 
more record drawings.  Each project is counted as one regardless of the number of 
improvement sheets. 

3) Encroachment Permits – This column represents changes made to existing AutoCAD 
record drawings to reflect an encroachment that has been generated through the permit 
process. 

4) Special Projects – This column represents AutoCAD record drawing status of recently 
constructed Special Projects such as the installation of new fire hydrants or service 
laterals.  

5) Facility Mapping – This column represents individual minor mapping update requests from 
field or office staff.  

 
E. FUNDING REQUESTS: 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan (DWSRF) Application – 2020 Pipeline 
Replacement Project.   This DWSRF Loan provides funding for Four pipeline replacement 
projects, Gordon Hill, Oat Hill, Lilac Road, and Alps Way.  Loan approval in the amount of 
$8.5M was received in March ’22.  Staff has submitted eight disbursement requests for 
construction funding, the most recent being Disbursement No. 8 ($168K) submitted 
November, 2024, for expenses through August 30, 2024.  The eight funding requests 
submitted to date total $8.252M.  To date, the SWRCB has disbursed $7.842M in loan 
proceeds, the most recent being received on November 1, 2024.  On average, it takes 136 
days from disbursement submittal to receipt of the SRF loan proceeds. 
 
EPA Community Grant.  In April ‘23, VCMWD was awarded a $3.06M Community Grant for the 
Lilac Road Pipeline Replacement Project.  Because the Lilac Road project was already under 
construction, the EPA approved, a “Technical Correction” to shift the grant funding from the Lilac 
Road Pipeline Replacement Project to the Rodriquez Road Pipeline Replacement Project.   
 

In April ‘24, VCMWD was awarded a $715K Community Grant for the Old Castle Road 
Pipeline Replacement Project.  Staff is in process of requesting, a “Technical Correction” to 
shift the $3.06M grant funding from the Rodriquez Road Pipeline Replacement Project to the 
Old Castle Road Pipeline Replacement Project for a combined total of $3,775M.  
 

Staff is preparing the application for submittal through the EPA’s Grants.gov website in 
conjunction with an SRF application for the balance of the funding. 
 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan (DWSRF) Application – 2023 Water Facility 
Replacement Project.  Staff prepared and submitted in November ’23 a $9.3M application 
($12.36M total less the $3.06M in grant funding) to the SWRCB for funding the following three 
projects: a) Old Castle Road Pipeline Replacement, b) Broadway South Pipeline 
Replacement and c) Rodriguez Road Pipeline Replacement.  Due to anticipated cash flow 
requirements during construction, staff reduced the loan request to a $5.525M application to 
include only the Old Castle project in combination with the $3.775M for total project cost of 
$9.3M.  The application was completed in December and SWRCB staff is reviewing the 
submitted documents for issuance of the loan approval. 
 



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  9 Monthly Status Report 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan (DWSRF) Application – North Broadway 
Pipeline Relocation Project.  In December ’24 Staff prepared and submitted a $4.2M 
application for the North Broadway Pipeline Relocation Project.  This was one of the projects 
eliminated from the 2023 Water Facility Replacement Project for cash flow purposes.  The 
application is currently under SWRCB staff review for inclusion in the FY 2025-26 IUP.   

 
F. SEMINARS/MEETINGS: 

 

3/11/25 – M. Wick virtually attended the SDCWA Water Loss Control Group Meeting. 
 
3/20/25 – M. Wick attended the Third Thursday, DWR Water Loss and Leak Detection webinar. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  10 Monthly Status Report 

IV.   FINANCE DEPARTMENT: 
 

A.    COMPARISON OF STATISTICS:   MAR  FY to Date FY to Date 
      2025  2024-25 2023-24 

BILLS MAILED:  10,507             94,613           94,345 
 

 Actions for Non-Payment:      
    Notices Mailed  1,328  12,458             11,307 
    48 Hr. Phone Calls  538    4,902    4,912 
    Meters Flow Restricted             3         17         31 
    Accounts Liened  2         33         71 
 Lien Notices Mailed  6         72       217 
 

Accounts Transferred                     44       386  440 
 

 
  CUSTOMER COUNTS:  MAR MAR MAR 
   Active Water Accounts:  2025 2024 2023 

  Certified Ag - PSAWR  630 628 637 
  M & I   9,174 9,161 9,065 
  Fire Meters  2,034           2,010      1,900 
  Total Active Accounts  11,840 11,799 11,602 
 

Inactive Water Accounts:   
  PSAWR  53 53 46 
  M & I   728 718 709 
  Fire Meters              155          140    133 
  Total Inactive Accounts  936 911 888 
 

Total Water Accounts  12,776 12,710 12,490 
 

Active Wastewater Accounts 
  Moosa   2,475 2,472  2,492 
  Woods Valley                  984  973  895 

4 

Total Wastewater Accounts  3,459 3,445 3,387 

 
        Acre-Feet Value  

Interim MWD Agricultural Program:    
JULY 1994 through DEC 2012        513,882.8 $63,681,802 

MWD RTS Estimated Savings: 
JAN 2003 through DEC 2012     $17,884,325 

SDCWA PSAWR: 
JULY 1998 through MAR 2025   498,922.4 $36,476,012 

SDCWA Emergency Storage Est. Savings: 
   JAN 2003 through MAR 2025    $37,203,114 

SDCWA Supply Reliability Est. Savings: 
   JAN 2016 through MAR 2025    $6,307,141 

 

 TOTAL MWD & SDCWA DISCOUNTS:   $161,552,394 

 
 

      B.    MEETINGS:  
   

No meetings attended in the month of March. 
 

 



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  11 Monthly Status Report 

V. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT: 
 

A. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS − 
 

SCADA HMI Improvements – Replacement of the HMI system for the water system is 
currently in in progress of being initially deployed to North County Emergency Storage 
Project (NCESP) sites and then expanded to other sites in the future. HMI software upgrade 
is also being planned for Woods Valley WTP. 
 

Asset Management System – Phase 2 of Cityworks development and deployment is in 
progress, which includes fleet maintenance, equipment/tools, storeroom modules, and 
integration with GIS and ERP systems. Various reports and dashboards for water operations 
are currently being developed that show the data collected by this system. 
 

Boardroom Technology Upgrade – The existing video technology in the board room is being 
replaced with a new high definition media system. In-room video presentation system and 
video system wiring upgrades are in progress. 
 

 
B. GENERAL ACTIVITY − 

 

SCADA Upgrades – Continuous rolling upgrades are being done to replace older devices 
such as radios, cameras, network switches, and Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) units 
with newer models, which are faster and more reliable. This is an ongoing, continuous 
product lifecycle refresh process. 
 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Upgrades – GIS staff has deployed web maps and 
user portals within the software, and GIS databases and maps have been integrated with 
the Cityworks Asset Management System. The system is being continuously enhanced and 
actively used by District personnel. 
 

Video Surveillance System Upgrades – Staff is continuing to enhance the system by upgrading 
older cameras with new models and performing software upgrades to existing systems. 
 

Secondary Data Center Construction – A secondary data center is now operational at 
Moosa Water Reclamation Facility. It provides the District with environmentally controlled 
space for additional servers and data storage that can be activated quickly if needed, and 
it is at sufficient distance away from corporate offices to survive a local disaster. It has 
multiple redundant communication paths to corporate office with automatic failover, a 
dedicated high-bandwidth fiber connection to the Internet, has generator-backed power, 
and is monitored by multiple security cameras.  
 

Analog Phone Circuit Migration – Due to AT&T planning to phase out analog phone lines in the 
area in the next few years, initial planning is being done to move all District analog telephone 
circuits to digital by using a gateway device that connects to the District’s phone system.  

 
C. SYSTEM STATUS –  

 

  All systems operated normally in March 2025. 

 
D. MEETINGS –  

 

  No meetings attended in March 2025. 



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  12 Monthly Status Report 

VI. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS: 

 
A.   General Administration Meetings and Activities for Month of March 2025 −  

 
3/03/25 – SDCWA Joint Public Information/Conservation Coordinators Meeting (AN); 

VCMWD CII Classification Meeting (AN); 
 

3/04/25 –  VCMWD Agenda Meeting (GA & AN); VCMWD Budget Review Meeting (GA & 
AN); SDCWA MWD Delegates Meeting (GA); VCMWD Table Top Exercise 
Planning Meeting (AN); SDCWA Regional UWMP Planning Meeting (AN); 

 
3/05/25 –  Local Supply Projections for SDCWA Meeting (GA & AN);  Lake Wohlford 

Annexation Status Meeting (GA);  SDCWA WUE Regulatory Workshop (AN); 
ACWA Legislative Committee Region 10 Prep Meeting (AN); 

 
3/06/25 –  CMUA Low Income Rate Assistance (LIRA) Strike Team (AN); 
 
3/11/25 –  SD County Farm Bureau Water Committee (GA); SDCWA Regional Water 

Loss Control Group Meeting (AN); 
 
3/13/25 –  SDCWA Legislative Liaison Meeting (AN); VCMWD Table Top Exercise 

Planning Meeting (AN); 
 
3/17/25 –  VCMWD Regular Board Meeting (GA & AN); 
 
3/18/25 –  VCMWD Agenda Meeting (GA & AN); CMUA Low Income Rate Assistance 

(LIRA) Strike Team (AN); 
 
3/19/25 –  White Pines Renewable, Expansion of Lake Turner Solar (GA); 
 
3/20/25 –  Regional Interagency Collaboration Meeting – VCMWD FPUD, RMWD, & 

YMWD (GA); 
 
3/21/25 –  North County Manager’s Meeting (GA); Congressman Issa’s Staff – Federal 

Funding (GA); North Village EDU Transfer Agreement Meeting (GA & AN); 
VCMWD Table Top Exercise Planning Meeting (AN); 

 
3/25/25 – SDCWA Admin. & Finance Pre-Board Meeting (GA); ACWA Legislative 

Committee Region 10 Prep Meeting (AN); VCMWD Table Top Exercise 
Planning Meeting (AN); 

 
3/26/25 –  SDCWA North County Caucus Meeting (GA); 
 
3/27/25 – SDCWA Regular Board Meeting (GA); ACWA Legislative Committee (AN). 
 

          *Key:  GA – Gary Arant; AN – Alisa Nichols 

 
 
 
 



    March 2025 

June 2, 2025  13 Monthly Status Report 

B. Water Conservation and Public Outreach − 
 

Staff distributed copies of the 2025 Calendar along with entry forms to Lilac and Valley 
Center Elementary School 4th grade classrooms for this year’s contest, and are waiting for 
the April 1, 2025 entry deadline.  

 
 

C. Personnel − 
 

1) Regular Full-Time Employees, as of March 31, 2025: 
 

                    Funds        Budgeted  Employed 
  

    Water             66                        64                        
      Wastewater              7                           7                         

          Total             73                        71 
 

2) Pending Retirements − 

a) Gary Arant – December 26, 2025 
b) Wally Grabbe – February 25, 2026 

 

 
 

Compiled By:    Submitted By:  

  

 
  

______________________________  _______________________________ 
Kirsten N. Peraino, Board Secretary  Gary T. Arant, General Manager  


	June 2, 2025 Board Meeting AGENDA
	1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, May 19, 2025
	2. Audit Demands
	3. Request Approval of Resolution No. 2025-13 to Set the District’s FY 2025-26 Appropriation Limit for Proceeds from Taxes per Article XIIIB of the State Constitution
	Request Approval of Resolution No. 2025-14 to Adopt the FY 2025-26 Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment
	5. Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Proposed Water Availability Charges for FY 2025-26 and Request Adoption of Ordinance No. 2025-05 to Amend the District’s Administrative Code
	6. Review of Proposed Revisions to the Meter Capacity Charges and Request to Set Public Hearing Date to Consider Approval of New Charges
	7. Preview of the FY 2025-26 Annual Assessments for the Woods Valley Ranch Sewer Service Area and Request to Set Public Hearing Date to Put the Service Charge and Grinder Pump Maintenance Charge Assessments on the Property Tax Roll
	8. Request to Approve Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with Enterprise Automation for the HMI Migration Project
	9. San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board Meeting Summary
	10. Monthly Status Report - March 2025

